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Financial Results and Business Review

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$543.8 million
(2014: HK$508.3 million) and a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$680.0 million (2014: HK$730.1 million). Details of the financial results
and business performance and development are set out in the Report of the

Directors on pages 28 to 50.

Business Model and Strategies
The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China. The Group generates and preserves its value through

being an investor in those property markets.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.23 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$0.23 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.23 per share during the year
(2014: HK$0.21 per share), the total distribution will be HK$0.46 per share
for the year (2014: HK$0.44 per share).

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 03
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Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on

Tuesday, 8 September 2015.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection
of Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping
and entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station.
This complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a

shopping podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle
brands, complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat
digital IMAX theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and

lifestyle services in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre

Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There
are automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and

a petrol-filling station. The Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholdershete and is
therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current internal control
system and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of
being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors of the
Company is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for

insurance cover from time to time.

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) throughout

this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed
by band in the annual report. The Board of Directors notes that none
of the senior management members is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management). Also, the disclosure of such information may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
The Board considers that this reporting line does not prevent the Chairman/
chief executive from understanding/managing the operation of the Company
or discharging his duties, for the Chairman and deputy chairman have
ongoing discussion on business affairs, in particular corporate governance

and financial issues.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made of all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 07
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2015

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family own businesses outside the Group together.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to its shareholders in the Group’s performance.
It is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group, which
include formulation of objectives, overall strategies and business plans;
and overseeing the financial and management performance, corporate

governance and internal control of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on these Board committees according to the
benefits brought by their participation in view of their individual experience
and skills. To assist the committees in discharging their roles adequately,
each committee is provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines
for its members to follow in decision-making. Duties and authorities of the
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the Board operation and Group’s development. Given the close collaboration
between the Board and the management, the duties, power and functions of

the Board and the management are clearly laid down and defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies which are first effective for the year under review as disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently with
those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial year. The

Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 56.

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 09
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REZEZE-_ZTE—AF=A=1t—HIBBRFEER - Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
$’/}§]%7£ FAANrESggRE(EdPUAasTHe general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
FIN—KBREAS  SRESEHNHE BN Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:
HESEAE  FEREESRRE
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EESgE BRXE
- Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HNITEE Executive Directors
EEE LA (FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 1/1
BT CEIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 1/1
fE I S A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6 1/1
eprycalinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 5/6 1/1
$EEEES /N Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
FEHITEE Non-executive Director
MR RB A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 1/1
B TTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BAEg&E Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 1/1
PkEF S E Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 1/1
il e Mr Tse Pang Yuen 6/6 11
REEFABRITHACH VTN AEMNEE To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to

perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates to the Board as and when necessary.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Company organised in-
house training courses in relation to Directors’ duties and responsibilities
for the Directors and reviewed the adequacy of training received by them.
The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions,
seminars, forums and conferences on their own with all related expenses

reimbursable by the Company, subject to the Company’s policy.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March

2015 is set out below:

R’ATDNE
HERRE HMTBAR
=P BEAL
b= HEER AR
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading  other executives/
- Directors conferences materials professionals
HITEE Executive Directors
SERRIB S () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N N
B Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N N
B RE Mr Cheong Sim Lam N v
RIS/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling N J
FHITEE Non-executive Director
SRR S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles N N
B TTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N N
HhFSEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam N N
Eiillpavivias Mr Tse Pang Yuen N N

i BRPTRRAVIEIIGEMNBEER ¢ QEGIRRRI

QEFBRAMEEHER -

and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Annual Report 2014-2015 &
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent Non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,
Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company
in formulating remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management; to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals; to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”") and are also available upon written request to

the company secretary.

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually. For all
other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration packages
on the recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual

basis.

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 13
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 27 to the financial
statements on page 123, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference
of the committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management; and made recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:
HEESRAY EERLESRRE
RE Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
BAESkE(ZESTF/E) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il patas Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive, and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the
websites of the Company and the HKEx and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

FRAZESHELFELB LGN T ¢ The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out
below:
HEESENE FEREESELNK
RE Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EWRRSE(ZEELE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 3/3
BRI & Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3
HEgLE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3
hEBAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
BREES Audit Committee
ARBIBEREZEENIERERANEZTIRE The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are

E\éﬁéE&%ﬁ%EV@%Wm@%:m&
SNIEAZ ERAM A BTN - HE PR AR S R B T Bk %
BN A BEE S BTR ﬁ%%%a RET R EEERINE
ZERN R 8 M R BB B AR BUR P OB
RSB TERMAAT - BLONEAZ BN ST s i B
REBMAREE  HIET RIITRRIMNEZ BN IR
HIFZ BRI ERBER - MG RRHER
NEPEZEIRT  ERASENIEEAR - B
RRAIBIERENBERTRAIFEZNETR
RN - WHRE $ITEE O ZEEAE
HAFAMBUYMAERBETE  BEERAAQ

AIESNEZERIER T BEREK  RRFNEZEE
MEEHE  WAESSELESR  B%EES
B REEC FFAMALBENERE  WEEH
RARRRRZ S - RARMAAEES XM
ARMERE °

to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedure;
to review financial information of the Group; to review arrangements
employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise concerns about
possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act as the
key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with its
external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of
reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEx and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the audit committee met
three times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor, considered and approved the terms of engagement
and remuneration of the external auditor; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board for
approval; discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit before commencement; met the external auditor without the presence
of executive board members of the Company; reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system; and considered and made
recommendations to the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties, the audit policy and the terms of reference of

the committee.

The audit committee also agreed with the external auditor on the scope
and extent of the interim review before commencement and ensured the
Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of the external auditor

to supply non-audit services to the Group.
The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESEAE FEREFEERRE

54= Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEBhRE(ZEESTE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il patas Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2015, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board reviewed the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and monitored corporate governance policies and practices including those
relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set

out below:

HESRAY EEBHEESRRE
= Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
NITEE Executive Directors
BRI () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
fopryeal ivley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
RIS/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FENTEF Non-executive Director
ARRB S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
BAEZERE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,103,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$491,000 to the Group, which included HK$178,000 and

HK$313,000 being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedures and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2015. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions. The Board considers that the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://ttll.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2015, other than those changes adopted
by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 3 September 2014,

there were no changes made to the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders may at any time make a written request to the company

secretary for the Company’s information to the extent that such information is

publicly available.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their inquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (ttlicosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. This is

usually held in September.

° If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they:

(@) represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

AGM to which the request relates; or

(b)  at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the

resolution at the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the proposed resolution;

() be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

the notice of AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the

Directors to call a GM.

The request:
() must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(o) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

(c) may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a GM, and
the meeting so convened must be called for a date not more than
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to
the requirement to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the

GM by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(a) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the statement to be circulated;

() be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)
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The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(o) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) has pleasure in
submitting the annual report together with the audited financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 57 to 126.
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Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2014: HK$0.21 per share) was
paid on 16 January 2015. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2014: HK$0.23 per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to the
said final dividend from Monday, 14 September 2015 to Wednesday,
16 September 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 pm on Friday, 11 September 2015. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on Monday, 5 October 2015 to members whose names
appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 16 September 2015
following approval at the annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday,

8 September 2015.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 2 September
2015 to Tuesday, 8 September 2015, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Tuesday, 1 September 2015.

Business Review and Commentary

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes in
investment properties of HK$543.8 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2015, representing an increase of approximately 7.0% compared with
the previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to increase of rental

income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (Continued)

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2015 amounted to HK$872.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$127.7 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of HK$680.0
million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders of

HK$730.1 million for the previous financial year.

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted to
approximately HK$641.8 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2015,
representing an increase of approximately 6.4% compared with the previous
financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2015 was approximately
98.0% compared with 100% at 31 March 2014.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2015 was HK$14,693.5 million,
compared with HK$13,810.3 million at 31 March 2014.

On 7 October 2013, Associated International Hotels Limited, a 50.01%
owned subsidiary, entered into a facility agreement with a bank comprising
of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and a 3-year revolving
loan facility of up to HK$100 million. At 31 March 2015, the banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2014: HK$200 million) and the
Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans divided by total equity)
was 1.4% (2014: 1.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2015, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 38
(2014: 38) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately

HK$25.0 million (2014: HK$23.6 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
° Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

o Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 97.7% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 97.7%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

o Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
iISQUARE at 31 March 2015 was 12.5% (2014: 11.2%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)

Key performance indicators (Continued)

(o) HHEX (b)  Occupancy rate
° TFTENE HEXRIERMAEABLBERIR . Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
WEE 5% eECHETEBmE reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
{FanI BN E O that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable
area.
e BN AEEMURAMEBRIAALE . Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
2o HXRE—EBERAEETRY The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
EHEREWNEEZ s —FEE comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
—FEEREYWENEHERT G E one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing
ZEERIMREE - performance of various properties in the Group.
o SEBRRBIRREUE e Quantified KPI data:
Occupancy rate
2015 720144
3A31H 3A31H
At 31 March At 31 March
BREYE Investment properties 2015 2014
B 35 iISQUARE 98.0% 100%
UAEBNEMEEYE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
(WHINGRIETESFEE 27/ ES Commercial properties in the PRC 100% 100%
R EBHN TEY Industrial properties in Hong Kong 81.1%-100% 48.6%-100%
f%ﬁﬂl%&i’%ﬁ Environmental policy and performance
SRR Notion and policy
HﬂﬁAZ}SE.EﬁIx%ﬁ%EE% BT R éf ' Since the Group’s main business is property investment in Hong Kong, it
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does not belong to an industry which brings about serious adverse effects
on the environment. Nevertheless, the management acknowledges that
being a responsible enterprise, the Group still has to take into account the

impact of its business operation on the environment while enjoying financial

growth.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)

Notion and policy (Continued)

As such, the Group has formulated its environmental policy with a focus on

the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements
2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection wherever practicable

3. promoting environmental awareness among staff

4. adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation

5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way

6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials
7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and

encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process

Highlights

In order to help reduce carbon footprint across the office, the Group
during the year arranged a paper recycling company to collect useless
papers and issued guidelines to employees on use of electronic platforms
for communication and ways to reduce paper consumption. The Group
also participated in the “Earth Hour 2015” organised by World Wide Fund
for Nature (“WWF”) so as to raise the staff awareness on environmental

conservation.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance

o using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps

. employing multi-zone lighting controls
. switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not
in use

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 33
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)
Highlights (Continued)

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, ISQUARE, being the Group’s main operation vehicle, also takes

proactive steps towards this end. During the year, it

o conducted an energy audit so as to identify areas for improvement on

energy performance

o replaced some conventional lighting devices with T5 fluorescent tubes
and LED lights

o fixed an Intelligent Building Management System for enhancing energy

efficiency of central air-conditioning

o participated in “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial
and Industrial Waste” and “Earth Hour 2015” as organised by the
Environmental Protection Department and WWF respectively

o retrofitted certain chiller plants with variable frequency drives

Save as aforesaid, ISQUARE keeps employing the green measures it has

been using, such as

o using ultra low sulphur diesel for generator

o diverting used water from cooling towers for flushing

o installing timer lighting controls at common areas accessible by
shoppers

o encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally

friendly practices

o implementing recycling programme for waste papers

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”)

Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
investment holding, and iSQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the
total amount of direct GHG emissions generated by them is relatively small.
The largest contributor to the carbon footprint of both the Group and
iISQUARE in the year under review was the indirect GHG emissions from

electricity consumption.

B (Rmg)

Unit (in tonnes)’

BB (#5211 )1 Direct sources (Scope 1)1

o LEiH2 e Diesel? 0.67
TR (EB/E2)" Indirect sources (Scope 2)'

o ETJB e Electricity? 8,716.35
E b B AR (#5/F3) Other indirect sources (Scope 3)'

o RERKMERHE N e Electricity used for processing fresh water* 22.91

o RIR)FKMEARE NS e Electricity used for processing sewage® 9.72

A1 ORERBEN  BEABNGEESE  ZREMET
REMRAREZMHEACEBZEY (X - 2
EARAR) KR EREEMERER R E R E T
S ERAZEREESI P RELER - A
BNARZ BT R E BRI ©

BEHER

BENEERESHEA RS ESRBRMELN
HEREREHN BN TREEAEEGER)

HEEARELNERESHEENARBERE AN
EH(EPEBEBYERMBENENGRINMSIE
MR ERAEDEM -

HESERAASENMERESEHAR - B RBUF
MPIFREERKITK(EPE BB KEER
SN TAERE N A5 B A M EOR = RN -
FOBREFTE MBS BT HAER ©

Note 1: GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
and the Environmental Protection Department (the “Hong Kong GHG

Guidelines”). All numbers in this table are rounded to two decimal places.
Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned
and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation
of electricity which the Group and iISQUARE, excluding tenants through their
own metered supply, purchased from power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that are relevant to the activities
of the Group and iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for
processing fresh water and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’
own metered supply, by government departments. Emissions from paper
consumption are excluded.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Environmental policy and performance (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”) (Continued)

Note 2: Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of iISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potential set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 3: Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group and iISQUARE for own consumption and the latest emission factor as

published by the relevant electricity provider.

Note 4: Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Note 5: Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the Drainage
Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Compliance with laws and regulations
During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant

impact on it.

Suppliers

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
management company engaged to run iSQUARE (the “MgtCo”), professional
service providers and some other companies that deliver services for
support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation on areas such
as insurance, banking and information technology. Services of the indirect
suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering, cleaning and

security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Suppliers (Continued)

Based on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the
Group’s key suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the
latter one is particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with
the indirect suppliers. In order to enable the MgtCo to truly understand the
Group’s concerns and notions, and work with it towards the same direction,
the MgtCo has been provided with relevant policies of the Group. Save for
written communication, the Group also has frequent direct dialogue and

regular meetings with the MgtCo.

Although more than half of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during
the year. The feedback of the survey was very positive. It showed that all the
selected suppliers found partnering with the Group was not merely mutually

beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Customers

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the Group has, through
iISQUARE, made available a number of social media platforms, like facebook
and weibo, for tenants to raise their concerns. Alternatively, the tenants
can contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone
and email. The management team also pays visits to the shops from time
to time so as to exchange views with the tenants directly and respond to
their concerns efficiently. In spite of the limited written complaints received
during the year ended 31 March 2015, the MgtCo tried its best endeavour to

ensure they were properly addressed to in a timely manner.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year conducted a satisfaction survey on all the
tenants. Although the survey result showed that there were some areas the
Group had to further work on, about half of the respondents considered
the overall performance in each of the aspects of leasing, management and
technical/maintenance service as satisfactory. About three quarters of the
respondents expressed interest in renewing tenancy with the Group and

over 50% said they would recommend iISQUARE to their business partners.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Employees

Employees* are the valuable asset of the Group. To assist its staff to develop
their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately, the Group
provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees, irrespective of their
rankings. Since a good work-life balance is considered equally significant to
the employees, the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within
office hours and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of

the Group.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared among the management and relevant department heads so as

to identify ways to make further improvement.

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. About 60% of the respondents found either satisfied or very
satisfied with the Group as a whole and with the recognition/support from
the management. The employee turnover rate for the year was around 3%

whilst the employee absence rate was less than 1.5%.

* Employees exclude directors in this context.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Rental income is the main source of revenue for the Group and the Board
closely monitors factors which may affect the leasing of ISQUARE particularly
changes in the retail market and the external economic environment that

would be regarded as principal risks.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

Recent reports on the Hong Kong retail market have indicated a slowdown
in tourism growth. The Group will continue to monitor closely the impact of
the slowdown in tourism growth by adopting appropriate leasing strategies.
Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that rental income from
iISQUARE and the results from operations of the Group for the coming

financial year will be relatively stable.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of all the
Company’s subsidiaries, except Associated International Hotels Limited
whose directors also included Miss Cheong Chong Ling, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung,
were Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
and Mr Cheong Sim Lam.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.



EESHEE Report of the Directors

EEkESTHRAEBBEENR
7~ HERO N EEENERR
23]

AR RREECES R DD ([ BHE0 ) E
352 BB RMAT - SRR LT RAT
AREERITES RS ORETA(RETA )
Ui RAR T REBHA ZHHERAT
(TBF 5T ) Pt R SR - ARFIMET - BB
B B R ELH 9 A (HRIE 2B 3 RN ([ b
FADZERR-E-AF=A=+—RBEA
DT R E B AR & B DI EXV TR
B8) 2RI REET ¢

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures

As at 31 March 2015, the directors and chief executives of the Company and

their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following interests in the

shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning

of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ AT (@) The Company
REEE
Number of shares

HE 8T
BREm ROEH
B AR REER AR ER ey WEZ
Total % of
Personal Family Corporate beneficial total issued
i Name interests interests interests interests shares
SEIEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 — - 4,035,792 0.85%
BTN Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
SE MR Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
$ELE Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — - 1,099,504 0.23%
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
JErERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%

(5%) (Note)

0 REREZRTE115,2000% AR EER A B FTHE Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares

BHI115,2000 B 10  RIFH LG - L61EmH
SR A IS AD WA 2 -

held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EERESTHAEEESMNE Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
7 HERONEREEWRELZR K Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

RE &) and Debentures (continueq)
(b) SEEPEIEBRATR (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
TiEREE

Number of ordinary shares

HE#T
BEER RADHEE
AR REER NEER e WEDL
Total % of
Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued
i Name interests interests interests interests shares
EpEE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 —  25589,715 7.11%
B Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
fpede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
i Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 - - 1,588,000 0.44%
il Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 - 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(7%) (Note)
i ATERERR T HY120,0000% BB E AR A TIFTE Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
B#I120,0000% E A% o RIRE GG - ER shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
SR R L SR D e - to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

EERHE

Number of ordinary shares

HE#T

BEER RADHBE

AR REER NEER e WESL

Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

i Name interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%
$EIBHR Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
=Y iy Cheong Keng Hooi 25 - - 25 25%
fkedE) Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%

B L ETiR R A SN - R A RIRRE S GNP 55352
HFREETFRIECMER - SURBRETRILE
A RAARARRRERAELENER  RZT
—hF=A=1T—H RRAREF  Jai1BA
BREBBAGRLEMHRNZER)DLIEHEER
N RISHEAREOEE (AR S B H GO EXVEFTER
TEE )RR - ABRAR SkERR BRI RRIAE o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2015, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

HERTRE

RHEE FEE 0l

Percentage

Number of of total

shares issued shares

KEFR AT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(5%1) (Note 1)

S Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(3:2) (Note 2)

WE Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(5%1) (Note 1)

== Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(3:2) (Note 2)

EaE Notes:

) EBEMEEFBEEORZENEBELXTIEEN
46,139,164 A% 15 1B R - 7£46,139,164 A% A% 15
46,023,872 BEEBMIE A FFE © 115,202/ A E
FlBMEBE LIS ©

@ EmMErXEMEENRFEREELTHEN
27,864,420 % A% 1 1B [R] © 7E27,864,420 A% A% 15
26,862,0360% /3 fE A S 455 - 1,002,384 0% HI /&
HEBREELTHE -

B EMEEEIN RZT-—RF=ZA=1—
B ARBAEEBNEBIAEBEERES
1P £ 336 M A RFR B M AR RIA A

BRI O SIA R
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(1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

2) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its parent company or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

At the Company level, there are no changes in respect of the directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 when compared with the

last financial year.

At the Group level, the changes in the directors’ emoluments for the year
ended 31 March 2015 as compared with the last financial year are due
to allowances for expenses actually incurred by the executive directors at
the subsidiary level. The Group’s policy regarding such expenses has not

changed.
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Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Management Contracts

(@

Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AIHL
agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the
year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2014:
HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except
for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE. The management
agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months commencing
on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed on an annual
basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination by AIHL. Manager’s
remuneration of HK$600,000 (2014: HK$600,000) was paid by AIHL
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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Fixed Assets

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

BEEE
KB R E MR ¢

HERGENEEYF

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

b B

Location

RAERR

Existing use

HEFH

Term of lease

Bl &5

BERDIREBCE ST =5
(NLREIBER 742555%)
iISQUARE
63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

ITHETERE

HTABRL - —HEAER
LT~ L2 ~ L3R LAFERL
NEBETDRE-AZTHR
(BUE MR 225% )

Good Luck Industrial Building

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

GFET AL

W~ —18 - =R RmiEg
NERDEZZABNAAZT/\HR
(R NUBE B ERE 7805 )

Goodluck Industrial Centre

Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors,
808 Lai Chi Kok Road,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

BT

Shopping centre

THRIFEM

Workshops and

car parking spaces

Y BRIINE - BEAUKRER

Petrol filing station,
showrooms, car parking

spaces and car workshops

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium
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Eﬁ%ﬁ(?ﬁ) Fixed Assets (continued)
HERSENREEY @) Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)
b B REAR HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BREEE 50 PRE ~H
hig
BETmBR =2 TR R
EEHEF T —E_T=%
(55 1B 36655 )
Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,
Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and
Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
(Marine Lot No.366)
HEES PRE A
SE—ZETMERL
PEIEMN TSR
BRANEE=1T=%
Yi An Plaza Offices Medium

Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,
No. 33 Jianshe 6 Road,
Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou,

PRC
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 14% and 33% of the
Group’s total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any member
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%

of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2015 are set out in notes 22 to 24 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

HK$2,110,000 (2014: HK$2,790,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 127 to 128 of the annual report.

Auditor
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 68, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983
and 1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is
a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

nearly 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 66, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been
the Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels
Limited since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is
also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 62, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Annual Report 2014-2015 & 51



EFHSEEE AEEARGRE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BITES @

EHBEEE 56 DAR—NAN=FH
—ANFFEHEEARQ R BEREEEE SR
NAEF MRIBMEREEBERAFAKEL
2 ARTAREERARMAEEZHEMIBA
RIESE o 3% A HUE Bl 3=Kapiolani Community
College gt MEEEE  WHEEBB=TAHTH
TS -

BRAMEALEREREEESLL  EFHEWMEL
NEEBMERENDS -

BRR/NMA - 4458 R NN EFMAREKE
WHEEEEHIE - E/NER -2 LFRBHE
ARBRINIBBERBEERARES - itZ S H
BEEERRABDTRAE - &/ MARKAXER
TIRAREBETHOR B 8

BRI/ MAREREBRMEEN LS -

FHITES

HHEBEE > 25AsEHS 0 795 0 A AR
—NAN\EE R —AN\RF RS SR D B s
BIREEBRABIESE - MEFFRER QB M5
EERBEBRAREREZESNTNEZE S
B o AEABRAEM  HARIBAEXEEL
Bi] o th R —ANREFZ2—NN\ANERHTSE
BERGHERE  WR—NNEFE—NNNF
MHEEBHARGMBERATER  hERE
BEEZESREREENZEGREERE
ZEQEBZE QAT ER  WATRENTH
ERBREEEHEHNTEEGNAIEESE -

52 Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHRA

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 56, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 35 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 44, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration
Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at

Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 79, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and
1985 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the
University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange
from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from
1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme
Committee and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive

Committee of the Housing Society.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman),
remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as
member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been
an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 74, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and
experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as
an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in
the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to

Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 69, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs
Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 64, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss
Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 35 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 58, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIs, ACS, aged 45, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, ACCA, aged 46, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in
2008, Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field

of accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Tian Teck Land Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 57 to 126, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the
Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-ZE-HFE=A=+—BLLEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
BfsE Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
N Revenue S 656,904 617,159
ARAE AR Cost of services (81,844) (68,461)
EF Gross profit 575,060 548,698
Hablg A Other revenue 5 6,470 2,940
H e #58 Other net income 5 5,707 68
1T E A Administrative expenses (43,475) (43,449)
REYEMLBESERN Profit from operations before valuation
KRR changes in investment properties 543,762 508,257
BBV EHERT Valuation gains on investment properties 13(a) 872,236 999,913
REVELEEBHEN Profit from operations after valuation
F by changes in investment properties 1,415,998 1,508,170
& AR Finance costs 6(a) (2,398) (3,048)
BB A F Profit before taxation 6 1,413,600 1,505,122
Frigti Income tax 9(a) (88,526) (83,985)
AEEHRR Profit for the year 10 1,325,074 1,421,137
THALHEMR : Attributable to:
— NAEERR — Equity shareholders of the Company 10 679,995 730,105
— TR AR R — Non-controlling interests 645,079 691,032
AEERR Profit for the year 1,325,074 1,421,137
BRERN — EXREE Earnings per share - basic and diluted 12 $1.43 $1.54
FOAERFE1260 BN TB AT EHRRH — 2B The notes on pages 64 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
5 o BINAREE M EN A B RS AR R A% B B & Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
155 EF M EE1T o attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 11.
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Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income
BE-ZE-HE=A=+—BLLEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
BasE F Tt
Note $°000 $'000
A EFE A Profit for the year 1,325,074 1,421,137
REZEM2EBA (R Other comprehensive income
BERKEH S EAER) : for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):
HirgeEsm o BEEasn ltems that may be reclassified
EH : subsequently to profit or loss:
— Al EERES — Available-for-sale equity securities:
— AFEEFEANEERH — changes in fair value recognised
N EEZE during the year (1,752) 2,288
— RERE ABRNEEE — amount transferred to profit or loss
on disposals 5 (5,794) -
AR BEREEEFE Net movement in fair value reserve (7,546) 2,288
AEEZEBALLE Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,317,528 1,423,425
THIALHER : Attributable to:
— NREIEREER — Equity shareholders of the Company 672,449 732,393
— IR AR R — Non-controlling interests 645,079 691,032
AEEZEKALE Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,317,528 1,423,425

FOLEEF 126 BHMNEBAMIEHREN—3H © The notes on pages 64 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZB-FEFE=A=+—HB(LB%ZI’R) At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
BfsE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
EE&E Fixed assets 13(a)
— KRB YE — Investment properties 14,597,963 13,716,191
— H i - BEKRERE — Other properties, plant and equipment 86,111 94,886
14,684,074 13,811,077
Al E S E S Available-for-sale equity securities 15 — 9,391
14,684,074 13,820,468
REBEE Current assets
FEUERFR ~ BT& MRFER R Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 16 25,329 26,451
BRIRIRITER Pledged bank deposits 17 152,718 244,580
Be NIESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 18 337,563 235,389
515,610 506,420
REAE Current liabilities
HEtEN Rk IERTE A Other payables and accruals 19 28,564 62,503
BHETE Deposits received 20 201,393 178,808
RHRRTS & Provision for long service payments 21 1,434 1,520
B & E e Obligations under finance leases 23 29 34
INERFEAST TSR Current tax payable 9(0) 23,442 29,963
254,862 272,828
RBEEZEE Net current assets 260,748 233,592
EEABERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 14,944,822 14,054,060
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER — FHEMA Bank loan - secured 22 200,000 200,000
FET R AT HE (B Government lease premiums payable 24 2,037 2,091
B & T E AR Obligations under finance leases 23 104 4
RIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 49,220 41,692
251,361 243,787
EEZE NET ASSETS 14,693,461 13,810,273
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SZEBBEMRRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZB-—RHF=A=+—H(UB%IIR) At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
BasE F Tt
Note $'000 $'000

EARR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25
%N Share capital 25(b) 121,830 121,830
Hitb s Other reserves 7,422,995 6,968,922
7,544,825 7,090,752
FE R R RS Non-controlling interests 7,148,636 6,719,521
A TOTAL EQUITY 14,693,461 13,810,273

EReN RS NA -t R BRETFAEE - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015.

A
=

EFFE EBE Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EEAM Director Director

FOLEEF 126 BHMNEBAMIEHREN—3H © The notes on pages 64 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE-HFE=A=+—BLLEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NAERRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
NABE FER
Bx  RORE EfRE fife  REER aE  RRER ERAE
Non-

Share Share Revaluation  Fair value Retained controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity

it i r r r r r r r

Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

R2013E4 A1 AR Balance at 1 April 2013 118,683 3147 900,951 5268 5529708 6,557,747 6,226,455 12,784,202
FEREREE Changes in equity for the year:

KEREH Proft for the year - - - - 70105 70105 69103 142,137

Ef2ERA Other comprehensive income = = - 288 - 2088 _ 2988

2RMAEE Total comprehensive income - - - 2,288 730,105 732,393 691,082 1423425
BRI —BHERE#E  Diidends approved in respect of

) the previous financial year 11(0) - - - - (99,694) (99,694) - (99,694)

R2014F3F3EEE  Transtion to no-par value regime on

EEZAEBEHE 3 March 2014 25(0) 3,147 (3,147) = = = = = =
BERREHERER  Dividends declared in respect of

HRE the current financial year 11(a) - - - - (99,694) (99,694) - (99,694)
SAFEERRERE  Dividends paid to non-controling

interests - - - - - - (197,966) (197,966)

3,147 (8,147) - 2,288 530,717 533,005 493,066 1,026,071
M2014F3A31HK  Balance at 31 March 2014 and

014F4A1AMES 1 April 2014 121,830 - 900,951 7546 6060425 7,090,752 6,719,521 13,810,273
REERGEE . Changes in equity for the year:

RERRT Profit for the year - - - - 679995 679995 645079 1,325,074

EZERA Qther comprehensive income - - - (7,546) - (7,546) - (7,546)

2ERALE Total comprehensive income - - - (7,546) 679,995 672,449 645079 1,317,528
B E—BtEEREHE  Dividends approved in respect of

fRE the previous financial year 11(0) - - - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188
BAASHERER  Dividends declared in respect of

fRE the current financial year 1) - - - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188
ATFERRIRE RS Dividends paid to non-controling

interests - - - - - - (215,964)  (215,964)

- - - (7,546) 461,619 454,073 429,115 883,188

M201553A31AM  Balance at 31 March 2015
<33 121,830 - 900,951 - 6,522,044 7544825 7,148,636 14,693,461

FOLEEF 126 BN EBAMEHRERN—3H © The notes on pages 64 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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mAERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-ZE-HE=A=+—BLLEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
s Fr T
Note $°000 $°000
TR Operating activities
B A A A Profit before taxation 1,413,600 1,505,122
FHEEIFE - Adjustments for:
— MEWA — Interest income (3,278) (2,194)
— BB — Finance costs 2,398 3,048
— e — Depreciation 9,684 9,721
— REMEHBERF — Valuation gains on investment properties (872,236) (999,913)
— REBEETEEER,(&F]) — Netloss/(gain) on disposals
FEE of fixed assets 37 69)
— FRAFREKA — Dividend income from listed securities (199) (132)
— JNESSE H 518 — Foreign exchange loss 52 25
— RE A ERISESEF — Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
equity securities (5,794) -
EEESEBAKE RN Operating profit before changes in
working capital 544,264 515,608
FEUERTR « 5] MFBFFUR A  Decrease in accounts receivable,
deposits and prepayments 1,217 6,153
HihEN R ETE B Increase in other payables and accruals 6,686 1,841
BT N Increase in deposits received 22,585 9,100
RERE S EFHRLD Decrease in provision for
long service payments (86) (53)
JE BT MO (B R Decrease in government lease
premiums payable (52) (50)
REEBRAEBNRS Cash generated from operations 574,614 532,599
[EANE R Tax paid
— BRABEBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax paid (87,212) (69,557)
— ENFREE — PRC tax paid (307) (255)
RETEHMBNRSFE Net cash generated from
operating activities 487,095 462,787
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LZERESREXR Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-Z-AF=A=1+—HLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
s Fr T
Note $°000 $°000
RETE Investing activities
BUFIE Interest received 3,182 1,997
BABRTEENRCIEIE Payment for purchase of fixed assets
REWE) other than investment properties (1,247) (3,026)
S EYE S HR Payment for expenditure on
investment properties (50,181) (8,146)
BEEEEEEMSNIEA Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 432 75
BB EERES Proceeds from disposals of
FS 508 available-for-sale equity securities 7,639 —
BHARE Dividends received 199 132
EEBRITF IR Decrease in pledged bank deposits 91,862 17,970
RETEBESHNRESFE Net cash generated from
investing activities 51,886 14,002
BEEE Financing activities
ENEERERESHNEARTSD Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (36) @1)
B BUTHE RS Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable (107) (109)
BEEZRITER Repayment of bank loan - (200,000)
LRI TE RPTIS 5KIE Proceeds from new bank loan - 200,000
B RITERFLE Interest paid on bank loan (2,074) (2,331)
B E A& TR A Other borrowing costs paid (250) 857)
B XS Dividends paid (218,376) (199,388)
BT IEERIR R AR S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (215,964) (197,966)
BMETEFTANBESEE Net cash used in financing activities (436,807) (400,692)
BHERESEFEYILMTEE  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 102,174 76,097
72014/2013F4 8181 Cash and cash equivalents at
ReEkASEEY 1 April 2014/2013 235,389 159,350
INEEREE T Effect of foreign exchange rates changes - (58)
M3ASTEMNEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
REZEY 18 337,563 235,389

FOAEEF 1260 BB AT BHREN—BD -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

64

EFEERTEER

(@

BREH

AP BHERRBABERNCEE
FHRELAD(UAEBER LS
Bl A & MR fn B0 AT A B R R ERIKE
R ELER) - (FREGFHERDM
2E) FEARGHRUMEB(A
BEBID R EREL - ABBEHKRA
RN ERMEEBRERZMAR
REEFEFETRUDBERE - AT
EREERANEZ ST BRME -

BEGERAG RN T A TIRAH
RIEFTHCEBMBIMELER) - ZF
EREARKEMARRE RN
BB RERE A HIBRERA - a2
TR B R )56 e R 45 L B R SR B4 R
W E RPN AE R AR LRI E (L
Al B E A A A &5t B B & 51K
REBEER

IR RREE

HE_Z-—AF=A=+—HIFE
HAR S M mFRORE AR BB
RE] (e[ AEE]) -

BT XSRS s BUR AT N5
BERBAARBEARI  MEN
RS AR LR AERFTEBE

pi-

—  REMEZRHME1E) &

— DEAAUHLERRESNE

BT A(28M5E1(d) °

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &

1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the

accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.
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(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

66

(©

FESTBER @)

fI B~ R K IR R R Em
(#0)

SEIRIR AR MRS R B 2 A2
A IFEADRAEERBEEEZ
A SR B0 B LA R
R AT LA A28 Bk R R Rk

:i52)

EEERMAENSSRBEERDN
Am%%%%%ﬁﬁ ERBE G

C REETERAR BB
#?hk%#%% GIERE: %li-v-3
FFET RIG0BRIRG B IR AR R

%o

E\

R RS AR A MM R A
MR IR B R EAR A SRR
HEER D R o IFEIRBIRATE
AEBEENELD DIZBAFE RS
BN 2R A BRI AR
ARrAESBERZEELR DR - X

HARRERGA REBREPHH
275 -
AR EER R B AT

EEEUR K - FEREER
SR - WAHGAERTH
PR AR PR K SR AR AR SR A s MO BURR
HFEE - URREREESNES - B
HEETSEHRBERTSERAN
HIER °

EAREEKE BB QRN ZES
- BINEHEERZMEARNE
B - HELENANNERER
HP R - ERAIMER T%%%ﬂ
BEBNRENEMESEARAEBE

FER. - %@ﬁ&ﬁ%*ﬁ@ﬂﬁé
IR R A BE - S (WER)
BEN—HBERRHAEDENER
BRI

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(j)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

Available-for-sale equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that
fair value is evidence by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at the end of each reporting
period the fair value of these investments is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve. Dividend income from these investments
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(g)(ii). When these investments are derecognised
or impaired (see note 1(i)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(i)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell

the investments or they expire.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(q)(i)-

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and impairment losses

(see note 1(i)(ii)-

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i

(i

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(e)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets

(i)

)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
accounts and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and accounts and
other receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention to the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
accounts and other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

= For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

= Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair values less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group

is required to prepare an interim financial report in

compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in

respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the

end of the interim period, the Group applies the same

impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as

it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)())
and (ii)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
(Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,

demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,

and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management are also included as a component of cash

and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

)

(i

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(e), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(0) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets

and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated

at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

()

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs and
one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements.

— Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities

— Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets

These developments have had no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into operation
at the start of the Group’s current financial year. The adoption of the
requirements has primarily impacted the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements. These changes
mainly include the presentation of the company-level statement of
financial position as a note disclosure instead of a primary statement,
updating any references to the Companies Ordinance to refer to the
current Companies Ordinance and replacing certain terminology no
longer used in the Companies Ordinance with terminology used in
HKFRSs.
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B8R &RKMzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue
The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from
investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to
approximately $89,413,000 (2014: $89,154,000).

Segment Information

The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole
reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.

No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Other Revenue and Net Income

2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
Hib A Other revenue
F B2 WA Interest income 3,278 2,194
EHESAREUMA Dividend income from listed securities 199 132
AR IEHE TSR E Compensation from early termination of leases 2,581 =
HAth Others 412 614
6,470 2,940
Hitw =58 Other net income
BEETEEE(EIE), BF  Net(oss)/gain on disposals of fixed assets
HER (37) 69
NS S S 18 R Net foreign exchange loss (50) (25)
EEA M ERRESEAF  Ganon disposals of available-for-sale
equity securities 5,794 -
HAth Others — 24
5,707 68
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B8R &RKzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 BRBLATER
RBATEFIZ 08, (GEA)

2015 2014
Fx T
$°000 $'000
(@) ®ERAX (@) Finance costs
RITERFE Interest on bank loan 2,043 2,045
FESHBUT HE B R 2 Interest on government lease premiums
payable 105 108
H AR A Other borrowing costs 250 895
2,398 3,048
(b) BIMAE (b)  Staff costs
e TENMEMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 40,815 38,063
FERFERKRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,152 1,084
41,967 39,147
(c) EHEBE (c) Otheritems
S EMERHEE Gross rental income from investment
WA g properties (656,904) (617,159)
B B Less: Direct outgoings 81,844 68,461
(575,060) (548,698)
%R & Auditor’s remuneration
— 2RI — audit services 1,103 1,103
— B ARTE — tax services 178 116
— HAh RS — other services 313 318
e Depreciation 9,684 9,721
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B8R &RKMzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 ESME 7 Directors’ Remuneration
RIEEBCRABED YEI83E R AT (HEE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
EEFZERDRAIDE2WIHRNEEHE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
T (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as
follows:
E 2= 33/ BNEHE 2015
Exwe REYANHE BETEAL R wa
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T T T Fr
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
HITER Executive Directors
1B1E)E Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,547 700 - 2,347
SRR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,034* 700 6 3,840
e Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,538 300 - 1,938
o) Cheong Sim Lam 100 2,144 300 - 2,544
$EIA1L Cheong Chong Ling 100 807 120 21 1,048

FHTES Non-executive Director

VR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650

BYFHITEE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
=3 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170

1,450 9,620 2,120 27 13,217
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B8R &RKzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMEw 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
RIEEBCRA BVED YEI83E R AT (HEE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
EEFRER)BOIDE2EIFHNESE < Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
wmr :(48) (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as

follows: (Continued)

e o EEh RIRETE 2014
E5ME  KEDIR BEAEAL R FEk
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
e Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,505 700 — 2,305
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,904* 700 21 3,725
EmiE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,493 300 — 1,893
fibode] Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,779 300 = 2,179
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 100 765 120 20 1,005
FHTES Non-executive Director
VEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - — 650
BIUFHITEE Independent Non-executive
Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 = = = 340
et Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 — = = 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 = = = 170
1,450 8,996 2,120 41 12,607
* EEETOEREENRTERMEEMEN * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
‘A fhEFHEES £ 4 & 3,210,000 5T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZ—Mm4 : 3,210,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,210,000 (2014: $3,210,000).
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B KME Notes to the Financial Staterments
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EmmMEAL 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
—ENFEERZE-RAFFEANE=MNE The five highest paid individuals for 2014 and 2015 are all directors of
WATHARARINES - ESE5IHR the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

P57 o
9 FIEMH 9 Income Tax
(@ HZEBRKRFITHFEHE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
A statement represents:
2015 2014
F T
$°000 $'000

AEABIE — FBRIEH  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax

REEFITAZER Provision for the year 80,839 76,270
NEFEEECETR), (Over)/under-provision in respect of
NE prior years (126) 47
80,713 76,317
AEBIE — Current tax — PRC
REERTEEE Provision for the year 285 256
EELEHIE Deferred tax
KEWMEAREBENE Changes in fair value of investment properties 57 248
TR EEAEAED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,471 7,164
7,528 7,412
88,526 83,985
BEAENEHEBSIRATE NG The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at
JERT B & A A 16.5% (=T — PO 4 - 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
16.5%) MBI K5 H - AETRIERIR the year. PRC taxation is calculated based on the applicable
BB 2 R AR AT E AR X rate of taxation in accordance with the relevant tax rules and
Ho regulations of the PRC.
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(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=+
9 Fﬁ‘f%‘*ﬂ:(%“”) 9 Income Tax (Continued)
(b) PTEH X HMizE AR ES (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EE2iHaf MR - accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
R AR A Profit before taxation 1,413,600 1,505,122

IR AR TE AR B K &5 5% A& Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated

FAMEAEBRBADSS]  at the rates applicable to profits in the
SOEE R countries concerned 233,146 248,101
AR BRI Z  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 680 639
BEATRWANTIIESZ  Tax effect of non-taxable income (145,174) (164,802)
LA FEEEECGEE) /T2 (Oven/under-provision in prior years (126) 47
EREBIES T Actual tax expense 88,526 83,985
() #HFEHBEARRERITOAE (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
Fr8iiA : statement of financial position represents:
2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
REEBRBNERERE Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for

the year 80,839 76,270
BT ESFISH Provisional profits tax paid (57,397) (46,329)
23,442 29,941
REIRIA PRC taxation - 20
N EARE A PT S HA Current tax payable 23,442 29,963
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B8R &RKMzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 Fﬁ?%*ﬂ(gg) 9 Income Tax (continued)
(d) CERELEHREEENES (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:
B LA TSR R ERR IR IER I8 The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
(BE)/AENMHEKED A FEE in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
AT - movements during the year are as follows:
ficbicl
REME HETEN
B nERBE BgEE B
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
of investment the related
properties depreciation Tax loss Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000
RETHIEEN Deferred tax arising from:
EEHE
2013F4A1H At 1 April 2013 790 33,525 (35) 34,280
ERRPR Charged to profit or loss 248 7,129 35 7,412
R2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 1,038 40,654 — 41,692
20144 A1H At 1 April 2014 1,038 40,654 - 41,692
ERRPR Charged to profit or loss 57 747 - 7,528
201543 A31H At 31 March 2015 1,095 48,125 - 49,220
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(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 Fhifs *R(na 9 Income Tax (continued)

(e) ARERWELEFHIEEE (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
REBM 1 (0)TE M S ETBUR © AR In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
ReECEEE BN B A AENERES the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
757 o PR FE SRR 35 K T DA S5 S 1R cumulative tax losses of $145,881,000 (2014: $145,881,000)
N 5 B # K 7t 145,881,000 ( =& as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
— U4 : 145,881,0007T) K 25 EE 75 the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
EBEREREENELEHIEEE - BB jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
RITRLE - BERFEETRERR current tax legislation.
Hy o

NEERRRESER 10 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

of the Company

NAIESRRELGES SN BE—E25A The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the

AR A B, K 229,992,000 T Company includes a profit of $229,992,000 (2014: $222,629,000)

(ZZF—MM4F : 222,629,0007T )& £l © which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 RE
(@) AFEEMNQEE

/BN

 IRR R

11 Dividends
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

2015 2014
Fr T
$°000 $'000
EEREZAFHERE Interim dividend declared and paid of
Fh%0.237T $0.23 per share (2014: $0.21 per share)
(20144 : HM%0.217T) 109,188 99,694
RIREHRKRER R Final dividend proposed after the end of
B IRAIRE the reporting period of $0.23 per share
=%0.237T (2014: $0.23 per share)
(20144 : &M%0.237T) 109,188 109,188
218,376 208,882

RS R4 B R EZE D KA AR
RERAERERHRERERRE

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting

period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

& reporting period.

b) BRLE—HHREEREMSDT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
RS WRREEHE of the Company attributable to the previous
B e financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2015 2014
Fr FIT
$000 $'000
BRE—HFE - Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
WA FERE A RS HH)  year, approved and paid during the year,
RNEARR B EAR%0.237T of $0.23 per share (2014: $0.21 per share)
(20144 : FhR0.217T) 109,188 99,694

12 SREFN —EXKES
EREARBRINRBZBAFEN QT
= | R O’ L& F 679,995,000 JT

—ZT — P4 : 730,105,000 7T ) K B &
THY AN 474,731,824 B¢ ( — T — PO 4F
474731824 ) 5t &E - —ZFE —HF K
T - AFWEBEATEERY

12 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $679,995,000
(2014: $730,105,000) and 474,731,824 (2014: 474,731,824) shares
in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive shares in
existence in 2014 and 2015.
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13 BEEEE 13 Fixed Assets
(@) (@)
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FEXR
BEME Hi HittgE Pt e
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T Fr Fr Fr Fr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RASEE : Cost or valuation:
20144818  At1April 2014 13,716,191 101,824 34,076 135,900 13,852,091
EH AR Exchange adjustments (52) - - - (52)
HE Additions 9,588 - 1,392 1,392 10,980
BE Disposals - - (1,420) (1,420) (1,420)
R BEFHE Fair value adjustments 872,236 - - - 872,236
$20159F3A31H At 31 March 2015 14,597,963 101,824 34,048 135,872 14,733,835
¥k : Representing:
%N Cost - 101,824 34,048 135,872 135,872
(B —2015F Valuation - 2015 14,597,963 — - — 14,597,963
14,597,963 101,824 34,048 135,872 14,733,835
25HiNE . Accumulated depreciation:
R2014F4 /18 At1 April 2014 - 21,320 19,694 41,014 41,014
NEFHE Charge for the year - 3,520 6,164 9,684 9,684
B B B[] Written back on disposals - - (937) (937) (937)
72015934318 At31 March 2015 - 24,840 24,921 49,761 49,761
BREVRE Net book value:
201543 H31H At 31 March 2015 14,597,963 76,984 9,127 86,111 14,684,074
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B8R &RKMzE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

— L .
13 BEEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
@ @ (@ (continued)
REMZ B - MERERE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
AR
EEYE HAh )5 HiEE AN ]
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RASEE : Cost or valuation:
M2013F481H  At1April 2013 12,731,899 101,824 31,866 133,690 12,865,589
ER R Exchange adjustments 33 - — _ 33
jBE Additions 2,157 = 3,026 3,026 5,183
R AN Cost adjustment (17,811) - = — (17,811)
BRE Disposals — — (816) (816) (816)
RAEEHE Fair value adjustments 999,913 - - - 999,913
20144378318 At 31 March 2014 13,716,191 101,824 34,076 135,900 13,852,091
Rk : Representing:
FXAR Cost - 101,824 34,076 135,900 135,900
BB —2014%F Valuation - 2014 13,716,191 = - — 13,716,191
13,716,191 101,824 34,076 135,900 13,852,091
EFHE - Accumulated depreciation:
M2013F4B1H At 1 April 2013 — 17,801 14,302 32,103 32,103
AEEHE Charge for the year = 3,519 6,202 9,721 9,721
REKRERD Written back on disposals - - (810) (810) (810)
M20144F3H31H At 31 March 2014 — 21,320 19,694 41,014 41,014
HRMEFE Net book value:
M201443H31H At 31 March 2014 13,716,191 80,504 14,382 94,886 13,811,077
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13 EEEE @)

(b)
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13 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

At 31 March 2015, investment properties comprise iSQUARE,

(b)

certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of

Good Luck Industrial Building, a floor of Euro Trade Centre

and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other properties comprise a floor

of ISQUARE, certain units of an industrial property, a unit of a

commercial property, and two residential properties in Hong

Kong.

)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
18, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

= Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs



B KME Notes to the Financial Staterments
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BEEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) BREVENLAAEBETEZ @ (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) NEBEEBRE) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
REFBWEBANRBESE None of the Group’s investment properties measured
MITEMEREEE—ERK at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level 2
F_ESMGE WEEEE= valuations. The investment properties which are
EBHGENREDEITNT categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:
20155 20144
3A31H 3H31H
At 31 March At 31 March
2015 2014
Fx T
$000 $'000
RIEEEERTEN DA AEE  Recurring fair value measurement
WESREEEZEREEN Investment properties categorised
TEME into Level 3 valuations:
— IR E BT — Commercial properties in
Hong Kong 14,184,490 18,327,300
— R BB EEDE — Commercial properties in the PRC 47,683 47,161
— UREEH T EYE — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 365,790 341,730
14,597,963 13,716,191
REBEE-_ZT—HFR-_ZT—NO During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, there
F=ZA=+—HLEFE £EF were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
—EREFE_EREWED transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
RER  MRE=ZERITES recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
ASEH - REERBREKZE at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

ARBEERHMHRERY
B A B R AR -
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13 EEEE @)
(b) REVENRAABETZ @

100

(i)

(i)

HERER

R=_E—RAF=A=+—8 "
IR BB R R H R E Y=
BB HEAER — B
HEEFHERARAR(EE
ITHEABEBEMBGER
SEZE®R  BYHWEGHZD
EmMEMNE RFTEER AL
TR 2485 ETE RS - EhTY
ARz TERER - &
B E B HE{EER R E S @
HMEERE BETHENR

RANEE

FZERAAEBEFENE
#t

AEBRBUREERLE - B
MERFESBABEARL - X
ZRIMELAXRNEREH
A JE 18 B AR 2 A BB
RN NBEREMENR
REE -EANTHERGHA

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were revalued at 31 March 2015 by Vigers Appraisal And
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BHIFHT : below:
EA{tRHEE HEENEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
RENE Investment properties 2015 2014 2015 2014
AR EBREENE Commercial properties in Hong Kong 262%-500%  2.89%-500%  98.0%-100% 100%
IR E 5% Commercial properties in the PRC 6.50% 6.50% 100% 100%
NRBBNTENE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 400%-450%  400%-450%  81.1%-100%  48.6%-100%

KREMENAAEBEFEHED
MR ELLREER - BREXR(
R R LR o

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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13 EEEE@) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) BREVENLAAEBETEZ @ (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy FE=ZEBHAREBEIT=ME (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
BHE) (Continued)
REBERNE=BRALEBELS The movements during the year in the balance of these
RS BIANT - Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

UREEN R P EIRY LRAEEH

[GEX/ES [SEZ/ES I

Commercial Commercial Industrial

properties properties properties

in Hong Kong in the PRC in Hong Kong

Fr Fx T

$°000 $°000 $°000

20134 81H  At1 April 2013 12,385,900 44,649 301,350

JE N R Exchange adjustments — 88 —

EE Additions 2,157 = =

AR Cost adjustment (17,811) — —

AR EERAE Fair value adjustments 957,054 2,479 40,380

R20149F3H31H At 31 March 2014 13,327,300 47,161 341,730

M2014F4H1H At 1 April 2014 13,327,300 47,161 341,730

JE R SR Exchange adjustments - (52) -

HE Additions 9,588 - -

AREEFAE Fair value adjustments 847,602 574 24,060

R201593H31H At 31 March 2015 14,184,490 47,683 365,790
KEMENA R EEFAREL Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
EERRNREDMEHER recognised in the line item “valuation gains on investment
A HE PR - AFENEE properties” on the face of the consolidated income
m R HERE) AT A (B &5 5K statement. All the valuation gains recognised in profit or
BEARSERHERHBREBF loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end

BHME - of the reporting period.
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= N .
13 BEEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(c) WIHEREFENDTUNT : (c) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
2015 2014
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
/S In Hong Kong
— REEE — Long leases 111,521 101,942
— HHEE — Medium-term leases 14,515,744 13,647,592
BB Outside Hong Kong
— RETEE — Medium-term leases 47,683 47,161
14,674,948 13,796,695
(d) HEuEEEEM #B  RERAS (d)  Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor
o vehicles.
(6) RBEHMKRER  AEEURE () At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office
HEEENNHAEREEREFES equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $133,000

133,00070( == —H4F :34,0007T) ° (2014: $34,000).
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13 BEEEE @)

(f)

AEENELTHERLREDE - &
LEESNARMEETF  FTHEA
FEREENHRBED  ERAK
FHYUEFEE BE-_ZT—AF
ZA=+—BLFERBSETHERE
KA KB M <& A 15,850,000 7T
(ZZ—PU4E : 14,697,0007T) °

NERRERARELLHEIHFA
RAMETBOTENE  BRHE
BEEME -

AEBREBEIARGROHEEHEER
RERHSERENFEBEMT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

()

The Group leases out investment properties under operating

leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,

with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time

all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as

income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2015

were $15,850,000 (2014: $14,697,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise

meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivable as follows:

2015 2014
Frx Tt
$’000 $000
14E R Within 1 year 464,727 511,164
118 E5FA After 1 year but within 5 years 329,292 400,509
5% 1% After 5 years - 5,385
794,019 917,058

BEER (9) Pledge of assets

R EHMRER - RITERRUEE
T {8 514,148,693,000 7T ( =& —
4 : 13,304,416,0007T ) M E E B &=
{ERIEIR (23K 5E22) -

At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
value of $14,148,693,000 (2014: $13,304,416,000) were

pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 22).
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14

104

B 2 =

TRIBAREREHBRARFE - B52E
EREIN - ARG AT B -

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

FRAGREER LB
Proportion of ownership interest
B AT AEEN mARE  HNE
ARAR REHE BERTRAZRAFE ERER 5E QRRE IEXH
Place of Group’s held by
incorporation  Particulars of issued and effective the held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
HEBREE AR AR B 360,000,0008% (3 5001%  46.41% 3.6% WERBRIBEER
Associated International Hotels Hong Kong 360,000,000 shares Property investment
Limited and investment
holding
Sparkland Investments Limited i 2Rk A1D 100% 100% — REER
Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BHBHRAH B 2fiktn 100% - 100% FAEMEEREER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property and
investment holding
EBH(ER)ERAA B 1,600,000 &5 100% 100% - MERE
Metropolitan (International) Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 shares Property investment
Associated International Resorts BB 2BRAR 50.01% - 100% NEER
Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
HEERNA BE 200,000 17 50.01% - 100% MERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &
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14 BB T @)

TNERF B e B B E R A R A R A B R AT
BERMBE - ZARRAEER—HEEEKX
FEFERRIE SR B A ] o JEERRIR R AT 4
mAABR49.99% « TREVIM I B E R
B ASENA RIRETEAE AT EE -

(@) FERE

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(@ Summarised results

The following tables list out the summarised financial information
relating to Associated International Hotels Limited, the only subsidiary
of the Group which has material non-controlling interests. Total
ownership interest held by non-controlling interests was 49.99%. The

summarised financial information presented below represents the

2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
WA Revenue 644,984 606,262
NEEFMNREEWALERZE  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 1,290,379 1,382,298
R IS AR BR A o FE A Profit for the year allocated to
IR A non-controlling interests 645,079 691,032
FIEEAR AR BR AR B Dividends to non-controlling interests (215,964) (197,966)
b) EEREERE (b) Summarised assets and liabilities
2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets 14,318,237 13,469,346
MENEE Current assets 477,930 480,088
14,796,167 13,949,434
mEA G Current liabilities (247,205) (266,333)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (249,252) (241,770)
(496,457) (508,103)
BEFE NET ASSETS 14,299,710 13,441,331
IEPERR AR B RS A BT A F1AY  Non-controlling interests’ proportionate
BEFEREGNE share of the subsidiary’s net assets 7,148,636 6,719,521
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14 Bﬁ%ﬂ a) @) 14 Subsidiaries (Continued)
c) BERERE (¢) Summarised cash flows
2015 2014
T T
$000 $000
REEEFTSAIE S ER Net cash generated from operating activities 481,281 456,182
B SE B FTE IR F%E Net cash generated from investing activities 43,906 13,766
BB RE T MIR 2558 Net cash used in financing activities (434,467) (399,338)
REemEIFHE Net cash flows 90,720 70,610
15 AHEEERES 15 Available-for-sale Equity Securities
2015 2014
T Tt
$000 $000
BB LTHERES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
(&ZmE) at market value — 9,391
16 FEUREBRE » s RFANFK 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
2015 2014
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
FEUT BR X Accounts receivable 19,481 20,756
o RIERREE Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(FF5E16(0)) (note 16(0)) (1,252) (1,267)
18,229 19,489
HEDSSENEN Deposits and prepayments 7,100 6,962
25,329 26,451
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16 FEWRERT » ST & R FEN T @) 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(@) BRERDHT (@) Ageing analysis
RBEHERLER - 2EERKE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
Rl RFEMRANERER(E for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
k% RIEREEE)ANBRBR DT T ¢ receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014
Fr T
$°000 $'000
R HER Current 17,355 19,154
B ER DR (R A Less than 1 month past due 491 269
#EA1 2= 31E B 1 to 3 months past due 336 50
EEAFRE3ME BB M12(8 A  More than 3 months but less than
12 months past due 47 18
BHAR A28 A More than 12 months past due - 3
B Amounts past due 874 335
18,229 19,489
RPR—MESAERAEE  EFER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and 10
H—RAETRE+IX - @K to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
B - REBEEBREMFFETH charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
RBIFE26(a) in note 26(a).
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16 FEWRERT » ST & RFEN T @) 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(b) FEWERFURIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
RELZARERS EEERENT - The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

2015 2014

T T

$°000 $'000

71K2014/2013F4A1H At 1 April 2014/2013 1,267 1,267

[k RN qEIE ¢ Uncollectible amounts written off (15) =

MR3H31H At 31 March 1,252 1,267
RZE—RF=A=+—08 ' BRI At 31 March 2015, the accounts receivable of $1,252,000
KA E w8 R A E AR E R BRI A (2014: $1,267,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
1,252,00070( —ZF—PU4F : 1,267,0007T) ° Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of

I EREBERORBEREEE $1,252,000 (2014: $1,267,000) was recognised.

% 51,252,000 0 ( =T — P4 & :
1,267,0007T) °
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16 FEWERF ~ ST RFEN K@)

(c)

2B RAE R B W AR TR
1B BRI MR AR AR B M IR
REBRE AT -

16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(©

Accounts receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

2015 2014
T T
$°000 $'000
REHSOL BRE Neither past due nor impaired 17,355 19,154
B R {E A Less than 1 month past due 491 269
#HER1 =318 A 1 to 3 months past due 336 50

BEAFRE3MEAE A M2(8H  More than 3 months but less than
12 months past due 47 13
60 BRR B 121 A More than 12 months past due - 3
874 335
18,229 19,489

AR ER SO B R (E A FE AR 7S sl
2B RRENEREEES -

EREER A RENEERERRER
EREEE R FEBERN—FBIL
B - BEERR  REAEESR

HAEEERL EEANE - MAERE
BRADBAR BRI 28U E - FTIAEZA

FULFHERE LR ©

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.
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17 BIRFRITER 17 Pledged Bank Deposits
R-E—RFER-_ZTE—WNF=A=+—8H - At 31 March 2015 and 2014, bank deposits were pledged to a
RITERC REER - LER—FETHRT designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 22).

HERTTER (2R E22) -

18 IBENIELZEEY 18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2015 2014
Fr T
$°000 $'000
HRITEGFER Deposits with banks 273,547 199,841
BITER RS Cash at bank and in hand 64,016 35,548
337,563 235,389
19 HitEAREEFTER 19 Other Payables and Accruals
2015 2014
Frx T
$°000 $'000
BEIEMETER Accruals and retention monies payable for
K FEHREB R redevelopment work 3,063 43,687
Hib R ERT & A Other payables and accruals 25,501 18,816
28,564 62,503
B 7257,0007c( —ZF—M04F : )M EME All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled
N IERT B RTETRBB— TR - within one year except for $257,000 (2014: Nil) which is expected to
Fra EMEN R R B & AR —FNE be settled after more than one year.
i o
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20 EWET=

21

B 7 100,018,000 7t ( — & — Y F :
133,486,0007T) W 5] £ TEFT R BB —F1&
BN BB WET B R —FRE o

RS2

20 Deposits Received
All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
except for $100,018,000 (2014: $133,486,000) which is expected to

be settled after more than one year.

21 Provision for Long Service Payments

T

$°000

201454518 At 1 Apri 2014 1,520
IR B AE Provision written back for the year (86)
201553531 H At 31 March 2015 1,434

IREEBURIBIED) - AEEBR A LR
RESA LB TREBER - ERLER
TRBEL— BN - B BEEMAT
BENFSRIBHTE AR EAEEERAK
SHEIR AR EIER HRS B o AR
838 T B (E A A R A5
B

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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22

112

TER — BEF
R-ZT—RAFE=F=+—8  RITEZNE
AR

22 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2015, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

2015 2014
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
1E&B25FR After 1 year but within 2 years 200,000 =
2F B ESFERN After 2 years but within 5 years - 200,000
200,000 200,000

RZZE— _¢+ﬁ’t5 ZIN/NEET =0 L= RN On 7 October 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated

A — SEBMBIE AR A Tﬁﬁi—ﬁeﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂj
T4 é@iaoo 000,0007T K §L & 5 o
RITRVE Z LA BiEA ?Emﬁé@ﬁﬁ
MIEE13 (9))HIEE— I;@im?ﬁﬂuﬂ& =T ERTT
TR (2HME17)WE —ZEBRRMNES
EAREE R-T—HF=A=+—8"
KB & # R 1T 8 % A& 200,000,000 7T
(=ZZ—PU4F : 200,000,0007T) °

ZBARMRITRE RERITEZM B A
AE THRAMBRRAKRL R BRI REER
FTEERA - WARREAE —ERREX
F o WZMBARRRZERS - QAR
FBNEFHE R 2 AREREY fo%ﬁ o AEEEEH
ERRAENABERH - R_T—HFR
—E=ZA=1—R - ZMBARLE
EREFERREER BN -

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &

International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with
a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets (see note 13(g)) and a first floating
charge over certain bank deposits (see note 17). At 31 March 2015,
the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2014: $200,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the subsidiary were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 March 2015 and 2014, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.
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23 mIEHERIE 23 Obligations under Finance Leases
N-_ZE—RFE=A=1+—8 AEEHHE At 31 March 2015, the Group had obligations under finance leases
MEARENERPOT repayable as follows:

2015 2014

REEE REEE RIEHEE RIEEE
NRERE IRELAB [RERE SFEeH

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr Fr Tt Tt
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
15K Within 1 year 29 29 34 34
1FZB2FER After 1 year but within 2 years 29 29 4 4
2F1£B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 75 75 — —
104 104 4 4
133 133 38 38
A BEFIESXH  Less: Total future interest expense
e - -
HERIEMIRE Present value of lease obligations 133 38
24 FE(TBUTH(E 24 Government Lease Premiums Payable
REZE—RAF=A=1+—H ' ENBTHE At 31 March 2015, the government lease premiums payable was
BUREFRERLAT repayable as follows:
2015 2014
F Tt
$°000 $'000
1ERN(BEEEMBERTZ KR Within 1 year (amount included in
EETEAA) other payables and accruals) 54 52
1618825 K After 1 year but within 2 years 57 54
2F1ZE5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 189 180
5F 1% After 5 years 1,791 1,857
2,037 2,091
2,091 2,143
FESIRAT HE T BRI AR (B ERRE AR EF Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FIRsE(ZZT—F : 52 )FTE © fixed rate of 5% (2014: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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25 BEARKF#E

25 Capital and Reserves

(a) PEZANILDHIEED (@) Movements in components of equity
RNEBIGEERNTEHAK LD The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
B REHRNEER - VEREE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
BEEER - ARaRNFIEFRE in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
&R R AR PR FB 2 ) BY 1B 7 H A the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
ViN/NE]| The Company
e R EE RERA ok
Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
BizE Tr Tr Tr Tr
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
R2013F4R18 4 Balance at 1 April 2013
53] 118,683 3,147 390,178 512,008
YNGR ) Profit and total comprehensive
FHRRALRE income for the year - - 222,629 222,629
BRE—HBEE Dividends approved in
BER RS respect of the previous
financial year - — (99,694) (99,694)
R2014F3 /3R Transition to no-par value
BEZEZEEE regime on 3 March 2014 25(p) 3,147 (3,147) = =
BRATHEE Dividends declared in respect
FIRAIALE of the current financial year - - (99,694) (99,694)
R2014%3H831AK  Balance at 31 March 2014
2014F4 18K and 1 April 2014
5353 121,830 - 413,419 535,249
AEEHEHR Profit and total comprehensive
FEBARE income for the year - - 229,992 229,992
BN E—UBEE Dividends approved in
BOERRRS respect of the previous
financial year - - (109,188) (109,188)
BRABRERE Dividends declared in respect
EIRERE of the current financial year - - (109,188) (109,188)
M2015563H31H#  Balance at 31 March 2015
oo 121,830 - 425,035 546,865
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25 BERKfFEw@

(b)

TN

25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b)

Share capital

2015 2014
BOEE & EE
Number of T Number of Tt
shares $°000 shares $'000
ERITRHE Issued and fully paid:
R&fA Shares 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 118,683
1K2014F3H3H Transition to no-par
EEEEEMEE value regime on
I (FE) 3 March 2014 (Note) - - — 3,147
M3 A31H At 31 March 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 121,830
T BB(RRERY(Fe22E )R BB Note: The transition to the no-par value regime under the Hong Kong

BEEEZEEHNEER T —0F
= R=H BB  RIBCARUEBDHT
FU1E37IE - ROEERNE Bt A
RN - ZERCHBERITIRHMEE
HAEMBRRABLEELELE - B
B R - RABRRB(REIEEDEAR
K SE6EDHIR E 1 E B

BB ABRERTEE IR K
S WAEARAAS F8R/FE K
B —F - BRARBOFEBRE
E - ABRNHEZARESEER -

REBENMEENAR
BEbRERENEFEEERNEE
MEBHBHRIEMYERSGHREE
ZBECERRERES - MENER
EEBMER  EHBNERRR
SHEMAREEBARDGN o thFHE
A IRAY ©

AR BEREEESNEREHRKA
PR AR EREEFN AR ET
RETEEFE - WIRH () FEH
SRR

]]H'

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) occurred automatically on
3 March 2014. On that date, the share premium account was
subsumed into share capital in accordance with section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the Ordinance. This change did not impact on
the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of
the members. Since that date, all changes in share capital have
been made in accordance with the requirements of Parts 4 and
5 of the Ordinance.

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with

the accounting policies in note 1(d).
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25 BEXRKfF#HE @

(d)

116

Atk
R—_TE—RFE=ZA=+—8  RE
EBCREHER ) F6BIRETER

AR T A AR R B FE e
B8 A 137,754,00070 (=& — M4 -
149,798,0007T) - EE G N M E H

%%H&E%%ﬁi%%ﬁﬁ%
0.237t (= —W% : §k0.237T)
& /\1091880007|:(_ — PO -
109,188,0007T) (M5t 11) ° BLLAR S
R IR G B A ERARE -

BEXEE
AEEEREANETRANRRER
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25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $137,754,000
(2014: $149,798,000). After the end of the reporting period
the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.23 per share
(2014: $0.23 per share), amounting to $109,188,000
(2014: $109,188,000) (note 11). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2015

and 2014.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2014:
1.4%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $290,281,000 (2014: $279,969,000).
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 20) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group

to credit risk.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 16.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows (including interest payments computed using

BEERHNR(IEBY )T ERF contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
B H ) RAEEEREZTA M end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
5|5 - be required to pay:
2015
LSt 18R BB BB
FHE RERBEE  BERAR BoweE BoRsE 81855
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T Tr T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HifERZ R EtER Other payables and accruals 28,564 28,5688 28,331 257 - -
BT Deposits received 201,393 201,393 101,375 55,007 45,011 -
HEREAE Obligations under finance leases 133 133 29 29 75 -
FOEF —EHE  Bankloan — secured 200,000 203,152 2,079 201,073 - -
ENBRE Government lease premiums
payable 2,037 3,336 - 159 477 2,700
432121 436,602 131,814 256,525 45,563 2,700

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair

Values (continued)

(b) REBESERE @ (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
2014

RIATR 1R EBE HBE
BHE  RensfE  BERAK (EOYVES DI Bilse

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5 years
T T T T S S
$000 $/000 $000 $000 $:000 $000
AtEMFREER Other payables and acoruals 62,503 62,528 62,528 = = =
Bk Deposits received 178,808 178,808 45,322 97,382 34,093 2,011
AHAREAR Obligations under finance leases 3 3 34 4 = =
HITER —BHA  Bank loan — seoured 200,000 205,084 2017 2023 201,044 -

ERBRtE Government lease premiums

payable 2,091 3,49 - 159 477 2,859
443 440 449,953 109,901 99,568 235,614 4870
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Financial Risk Management and Fair

Values (continued)

() Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.
The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

2015 2014
BEBRRA=E BERA=
Effective Effective
interest rate T interest rate F
% $°000 % $'000
EEMER Fixed rate borrowings:
BEFAEASE  Obligations under
finance leases - 133 — 38
FEMTERATHME  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,091 5.00 2,143
2,224 2,181
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
$R{TEF —  Bankloan — secured
BHEA 1.04 200,000 1.01 200,000
B4R Total borrowings 202,224 202,181

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 (2014: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $835,000 (2014:
$418,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale equity investments portfolio have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and are monitored

regularly for performance against expectation.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values continued)

C)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2014,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 19% in the market
value of the Group’s listed investments, with all other variables
held constant, would not affect the Group’s profit unless there
are impairments. The Group’s total equity would increase/

decrease by $1,784,000.

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis are categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as defined in note 13(b)(i).

At 31 March 2014, the only financial instruments of the Group
carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities of
$9,391,000 listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see
note 15). These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value

hierarchy as described above.

All other financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2015

and 2014.
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28

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014). In addition to the mandatory
contribution, the Group makes voluntary contribution at 5% of the
employees’ monthly relevant income in excess of $30,000 ($25,000
prior to June 2014), subject to a maximum monthly income of $40,000
($35,000 prior to June 2014). Mandatory contributions to the plan
vest immediately while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the
time the employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain
conditions. The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for
building and property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the

Group’s consolidated income statement.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $1,000 (2014: $5,000) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions (2014: Nil) had yet to be applied by the Group
at 31 March 2015.

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2015 2014

T T

$°000 $'000

SHES] Contracted for 256 4,950
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29 Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2015

2015 2014
BosE Fr T
Note $°000 $’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
— REYE — Investment properties 317,550 293,890
= NG Interest in subsidiaries 202,585 223,078
520,135 516,968
RBEE Current assets
FEWERR ~ 5] RIBFEK Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 633 731
BRe MRS FEY Cash and cash equivalents 33,544 23,958
34,177 24,689
REEE Current liabilities
Hiv BN RETER Other payables and accruals 3,892 3,182
BElET® Deposits received 2,424 1,929
ANERFES S B Current tax payable 118 317
6,434 5,428
REBEEEE Net current assets 27,743 19,261
EERERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 547,878 536,229
FREEE Non-current liabilities
BEHEBE Deferred tax liabilities 1,013 980
EEFE NET ASSETS 546,865 535,249
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29 RZE—HFE=HA=+—H 29 Company-level Statement of Financial

AT EBEN AR R @) Position at 31 March 2015 (continued)
2015 2014
FiaE Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
EXR G CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25
&N Share capital 25(b) 121,830 121,830
H b Other reserves 425,035 413,419
A TOTAL EQUITY 546,865 535,249
FEEeRN T —AF A +RBZENF Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
AIEEH - 25 June 2015.
Ea 2 Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EEM Director Director
s — = T - . .
30 EESARIMGRAEER 30 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party
EZERR AEBER-_Z—HF=A At 31 March 2015, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
=T HNEESARRERIEESBER ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
BRI REERAR o WATDEELR Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity
LU AR BT ERR o does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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which may be relevant to the Group.

New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
ARERE 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2015 and which have not been

adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

EUT BHSR 2%
BB ETBBEEN
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BB B ELER 20105 2201 26 B B F E BuE
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

(BB HRELERD2011F 2201 3F BN FE Buk
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

(BBBITEIRE2ERI)201 26 220145 1R HAR) F /5 uE
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

(EBUBRELERDFESHREE ST LA RAKA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(EBVBRELRDSER (2014F) [ €@ T A |
HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

2014%7H1H
1 July 2014

2014%7R1H
1 July 2014

2016F1 A1H
1 January 2016

20171 A1H
1 January 2017

20181 A1H
1 January 2018

A& IEE MGG LS AT IR 406 FE R 23
BFTELARFE - 2|8 Al A LR me © 3R
MELAERTH AR A M BRRIBREATE
EVRTBEIET K o

Tian Teck Land Limited X{Zit:ZEHGRA &

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.



AFHBEHE
Five Year Financial Summary
(L% ¥ %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e Results
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Tt T Tt T Fr
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
WA Revenue
— BEgE — Continuing operation 382,630 461,980 527,502 617,159 656,904
— R (FE) — Discontinued operation (Note) 17,010 = = = —
399,640 461,980 527,502 617,159 656,904
REYEMLESE% Profit from operations
R 4R e A after valuation changes
in investment properties 1,067,099 570,308 2,864,156 1,508,170 1,415,998
S =Vp#N Finance costs (9,175) (2,464) (2,257) (3,048) (2,398)
BRT AR A Profit before taxation 1,057,924 567,839 2,861,899 1,505,122 1,413,600
Frg i Income tax (8,223) (102,105) (69,644) (83,985) (88,526)
REFERLEZ Profit for the year from
REERF continuing operation 1,049,701 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137 1,325,074
RHRIEE Profit for the year from
REERF () discontinued operation (Note) 202,494 = = = -
REEEF Profit for the year 1,252,195 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137 1,325,074
THALHE : Attributable to:
— NRERME — Equity shareholder of
the Company 641,078 250,901 1,425,698 730,105 679,995
— JERARARER RS — Non-controlling interests 611,117 214,833 1,366,557 691,032 645,079
1,252,195 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137 1,325,074
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HEBEBE Five Year Financial Summary
(LB ¥ 5I/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Tt Tt Tt Tt Frx
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
ERE Fixed assets 10,176,725 10,408,017 12,833,486 13,811,077 14,684,074
HihEH5RE Other investments in securities/
A EE2EES  available-for-sale equity
securities 5,199 5,537 7,103 9,391 -
IRIEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 242 = — — —
nBEE(AE) Net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 979,777 179,475 (19,926) 233,592 260,748
11,161,943 10,593,029 12,820,663 14,054,060 14,944,822
$R1TE — B Bank loan — secured (1,000,000) (200,000) = (200,000) (200,000)
FERTBUN HE(E Government lease premiums
payable (2,240) (2,193) (2,143) (2,091) (2,037)
A& TH E R Obligations under finance leases (120) (79) (38) @ (104)
RIERIBE R Deferred tax liabilities (1,001) (26,402) (34,280) (41,692) (49,220)
BEFEE NET ASSETS 10,158,582 10,364,355 12,784,202 13,310,273 14,693,461
f&7A - EE Share capital: nominal value 118,683 118,683 118,683 — -
HEyAFEEAREE  Other statutory capital reserves 3,147 3,147 3,147 = —
A& R E At ETE Share capital and other statutory
BN capital reserves 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830
EM R Other reserves 5,071,157 5,193,482  6,435917 6,968,922 7,422,995
5,192,987 5,315,312 6,557,747 7,090,752 7,544,825
FEER IR R R Non-controlling interests 4,965,595 5,049,043 6,226,455 6,719,521 7,148,636
BB TOTAL EQUITY 10,158,582 10,364,355 12,784,202 13,810,273 14,693,461

g ARBER-T——F=A-RAEKHEMNSREA
THYE  ZVEIEEESMAS I - BER
BRRHS L ENRBRRERN - 2L RF
FEdih e RERHER  AEENSMARRFEESL
EITBERNAR L -

Note: The Group completed the disposal of properties located in Malaysia on 2 March
2011, mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf resort which was situated
on the golf course land, the condominium land and the bungalow land. The
Group’s golf and recreational club operation ceased thereafter.
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